IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA



THEWELL E. HAMILTON,

Appellant,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FOURTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR HOLMES COUNTY, FLORIDA

> MICHAEL E. ALLEN PUBLIC DEFENDER SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

W. C. MCLAIN #201170 ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER POST OFFICE BOX 671 TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32302 (904) 488-2458

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The record on appeal consists of seven volumes. Volumes I and II are actually bound as a single volume and contain the pleadings and other documents from the circuit court's file. References to these volumes will be preceded with the prefix "R." Volumes III through VII contain the transcript of the trial and sentencing. References to these volumes will be preceded with the prefix "TR." However, Volume V is out of order and is separately numbered. References to pages from this volume will be designated with the prefix "V-TR." The material contained in Volume V chronologically follows page 569 of Volume VII. Finally, in Volume IV, two pages are numbered 303. These will be designated 303a and 303b in this brief.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Procedural Progress of the Case

On October 15, 1986, a Holmes County grand jury returned an indictment charging Thewell E. Hamilton with two counts of first degree murder for the shooting deaths of his wife, Madeleine Hamilton, and his stepson, Michael Luposello. (R 6) He pleaded not guilty (R 11) and proceeded to a jury trial commencing on February 29, 1988. (R 110) The jury found him guilty as charged on March 4, 1988, and after hearing additional evidence on the same day, the jury recommended deaths sentences for both murders. (R 131, 132) The trial judge ordered a presentence investigation report. (R 114, 163-179)

Circuit Judge Dedee S. Costello adjudged Hamilton guilty and sentenced him to death on April 7, 1988. (R 158-162, 180-184) (A 1-7) The court found three aggravating circumstances applied to the homicide of Michael Luposello: (1) that Hamilton had a previous conviction for a violent felony based on the contemporaneous conviction for the murder of Madeleine Hamilton; (2) that the homicide was especially heinous, atrocious or cruel; and (3) that the homicide was committed in a cold, calculated and premeditated manner. (R 181-184) (A 3-5) As to the murder of Madeleine Hamilton, the court found two aggravating circumstances: (1) that the homicide was especially heinous, atrocious or cruel; and (2) that the homicide was cold, calculated and premeditated. (R 181-184) (A 3-5) In mitigation, the court found one statutory circumstance and three nonstatutory mitigating circumstances: (1) that Hamilton

had no substantial history of criminal activity; (2) that Hamilton had served honorably in the armed forces; (3) that Hamilton was known as a nonviolent person; (4) that Hamilton was not known to drink alcohol to excess. (R 183) (A 5)

Hamilton timely filed his notice of appeal to this Court on May 2, 1988. (R 185)

Facts--Guilt Phase

Thewell Hamilton, his wife, Madeleine, his 15-year-old stepson, Michael Luposello, and his two young children, Shannon and Shaun, lived in a small house in the Esto area of Holmes County. (TR 311-312) Lucille Watson lived across the dirt road and about a one hundred yards away. (TR 312-314) On the evening of September 19, 1986, Watson heard two gunshots and saw a flash from the Hamilton's house. (TR 312-313) She also heard something which sounded like pellets hit the tin roof of the calf shed located in front of her house. (TR 312-313) Watson did not perceive anything out the ordinary, and she did not call law enforcement. (TR 314-315) The Holmes County Ambulance Service received a call at 7:30 p.m., and Mike Taylor, an EMT, took the call. (TR 297-298, 308) According to Taylor, the male caller said, "Some son-of-a-bitch has come in here and killed my entire family." (TR 301) Taylor and the ambulance arrived at the Hamilton residence between 7:30 and 8:00, just about the same time as Investigator Eric Adams and Deputy Kenneth Tate. (TR 321,538, 541) After talking to

Thewell Hamilton at the scene, Taylor believed Hamilton to be the one who called the ambulance service. (TR 298-301, 308-309)

Inside the residence, Adams and Taylor found the bodies of Madeleine and Michael. Madeleine was in the hallway between the kitchen and living room area. Michael was in the living room. (TR 297-298, 321-327) Both had been shot with a shotgun. (TR 438-439) Adams first saw Thewell Hamilton as he knelt beside the body of his wife and talked to Deputy Tate. (TR 326-327) Thewell had blood on the front and back of his shirt and on his house slippers. (TR 370-371) Adams also detected an odor of alcohol. (TR 371-372) Adams asked Tate to take Thewell to the bedroom. (TR 538) There, Tate saw the two children -- Shannon, the baby, was in her crib, and Shaun, who was 2 1/2, was on a cot. (TR 538-539) The children also had blood on them but were not injured. (TR 540) Hamilton held and comforted his children. (TR 542) Tate did not talk to them. (TR 541-542) Later, Derit Godwin, an HRS social worker, removed the children from the house. (TR 545-547) Adams briefly interviewed Hamilton in the bedroom. (TR 327-328)

According to Investigator Adams' trial testimony, Hamilton told him that Madeleine's ex-husband, Gus Luposello, committed the homicides. (TR 328) Hamilton allegedly said that he was in the bedroom with the children. He heard scuffling, yelling and then gunshots. When he came out of the bedroom, he found the victims. (TR 328) In Adams written report, he related the statement differently. (TR 378) Adams wrote that Madeleine's ex-husband had recently been released from prison and had

threatened Madeleine and Michael. (TR 378) He had threatened to "get rid of them." (TR 378) The name Gus Luposello was not mentioned in the report. (TR 378) Gus Luposello testified at trial that he was in Washington, D.C. without any means of transportation at the time of the homicides. (TR 486-497)

Crime scene analysts from FDLE assisted Investigator Adams in processing the crime scene. (TR 329, 387, 406) A significant amount of blood was found in the living room and kitchen areas of the house. (TR 322) In the kitchen, blood was spattered all over the walls and cabinets. (TR 322) Two sets of footprints were in the blood. (TR 324-325) Bare feet made one and house slippers made the second. (TR 324-325, 359) Thewell was wearing slippers which were covered with blood and had blood on the edges and soles. (TR 359-360) Madeleine was barefooted and had blood on the tops and bottoms of her feet. (TR 360) Michael was also barefooted, but the bottoms of his feet were clean. (TR 360) Both sets of prints appeared in the hallway area which joined the kitchen and living room. (TR 322, 360) Also, from the way in which the blood on the floor of the hallway was disturbed, Investigator Adams concluded that a struggle may have taken place there. (TR 322-323, 360) Bloody shoe prints were on the carpet between the hallway and Michael's body. (TR 361) No bloody barefoot prints were in that area. (TR 361) A barefoot print in blood was found underneath Madeleine's body. (TR 404-405) A bloody shoe print was found on the doorstep leading into the utility room which adjoined the kitchen. (TR 322)

Investigators found a sixteen gauge, double barrel shotgun and fired and unfired shotgun shells at the residence. (TR 329-330, 364, 368, 391-402, 413-414) The shotgun was located outside, lying in the dirt underneath a van which was parked approximately 75 feet from the house. (TR 368-369,413-414) No usable latent fingerprints were on the the gun. (TR 410-412) One unfired shotgun shell was inside the van. (TR 398) Additional unfired shells were inside a dresser drawer in Michael's bedroom. (TR 364, 399-400) A total of four fired shells were found during the investigation. (TR 322, 329-330, 392-394) Ballistics testing showed that the shells were fired from the sixteen gauge shotgun. (TR 471) The fired and unfired shells were of the same make and type. (TR 475-476) Number six size lead pellets were found in the carpet beside Michael's head and in both bodies. (TR 397, 470-477) Pellet holes penetrated a window in the living room. (TR 362)

Dr. William Sybers performed autopsies on both victims. (TR 438) He found three gunshot wounds on Madeleine Hamilton. (TR 438, 442) She had a wound in the calf area of each leg. (TR 443-446) The wound to the left leg was produced at an angle which tore the calf muscle away. (TR 444) Only a few lead pellets remained in that leg. (TR 444) Sybers estimated that the shot was fired from about four feet away. (TR 446) A back to front shot caused the wound to the right leg. (TR 443) Sybers found pellets in the right leg, and based on the spreading of the pellet wounds, he estimated that the shot was fired from a distance of eight or nine feet. (TR 443) These wounds

would have knocked the victim down. (TR 454) Madeleine Hamilton also received a shotgun wound to the chest. (TR 438, 444-445, 454) This wound destroyed her heart and would have caused death in seconds. (TR 454) The shot was fired from a distance of two to four feet. (TR 444-445) Based on blood flow pattern on her thigh, Sybers concluded that the victim was in an upright position at the time of the shot. (TR 442) Smeared blood stains on the victims knees and lower legs lead Sybers to conclude that she was on her knees at one point. (TR 443) Michael Luposello received two wounds, one to the chest and one to the head. (TR 447) Blood stains on the victim's legs indicated that he was upright at the time of the shot to the chest. (TR 447) Sybers said the chest shot occurred first because of the amount of blood in the chest cavity. (TR 448) The victim was still alive at the time of the head shot because of the bleeding along the path of the wound. (TR 448-449) The chest shot was from a distance of three to five feet, and the head shot was from a distance of about four feet. (TR 449-450) Sybers found that Madeleine Hamilton had a blood alcohol level of .04. (TR 453) Because there was no urine in the body, Sybers could not perform a drug screen. (TR 456-457)

Investigator Adams called HRS for assistance with Thewell Hamilton's small children. (TR 543) Derit Godwin arrived at the residence at 9:05 p.m. (TR 545) He spoke to Hamilton, who asked him to take care of his children, Shaun and Shannon. (TR 556) When Godwin first saw them, the children were playing on the floor and showing little emotion. (TR 556) Godwin and

another social worker, Karen Leitner, took the children away. (TR 548) About an hour later while in the car, Shaun, who was 2 1/2 years old, said, "Momma dead, Michael dead, Daddy shot Mommy and Michael." (TR 554) Godwin said Shaun repeated the statement four to six times over a two hour period. (TR 554) The trial judge allowed Godwin to testify to the statements, over defense objections, under the excited utterance exception to the hearsay rule. (TR 525-536, 549-553) Shaun did not testify at trial.

On October 16, 1986, Investigator Adams interviewed Hamilton at the county jail. (TR 517-518) Hamilton had sent a request form asking to see Adams. (TR 517) Adams tape recorded the interview. (TR 517-518) (State's Exhibit No. 19 is transcribed at TR 502-512) Even though he knew he had been indicted, Hamilton wanted Adams to investigate further for the perpetrator. (TR 503-506) Hamilton asked Adams to investigate some of his neighbors who frequently used drugs and caused disturbances. (TR 503-505) Adams asked Hamilton about the shotgun and his activities that evening. (TR 506-512) Hamilton said the gun belonged to him and Michael. (TR 506) They used it for hunting. (TR 506) At the time of the shooting, Hamilton said he was in the bedroom with his children. (TR 512) He came out, struggled with someone and took the gun away. (TR 512) Then, he tried to help his wife and Michael. (TR 511) He picked up the gun and put it underneath the van in order to keep if out of sight of his children. (TR 511) Shaun apparently opened the bedroom door and saw Hamilton with the gun. (TR

511) Hamilton said this must be the reason for Shaun's statements about his having done the shootings. (TR 511) Hamilton explained that he mentioned Gus Luposello as a suspect because Luposello had threatened to kill Michael and Madeleine. (TR 509) Hamilton denied arguing with his wife between 5:30 and 6:00 because he did not arrive home until around 7:00 p.m. (TR 509-510)

Thewell Hamilton testified as his only witness during the guilt phase of the trial. (V-TR 6-67) On the day of the homicides, Hamilton left his job in Dothan, Alabama, at 3:30; bought some building materials; stopped at his ex-wife's house about some insurance matters and drove home. (V-TR 15-18) He arrived home just before 7:00 p.m. (V-TR 15-18) Madeleine and Michael were arguing. (V-TR 17-18) Thewell thought Madeleine was particularly upset, and he thought she may have been drinking or taking drugs. (V-TR 18) About a month earlier, she had used some drugs and reacted to the point that Thewell and Michael had to hold her down on the couch. (V-TR 18) Since Michael had returned from living away from home for three months, his arguments with his mother had become more intense. (V-TR 16-17) Thewell said he used take Michael's side in these arguments, and he had a real close relationship with him. (V-TR 9-10, 16-17) However, since Michael was not his son, Thewell stopped becoming involved in the arguments. (V-TR 16-17) Consequently, when he observed the argument on the day of the homicides, he took his small children away to play in the bedroom. (V-TR 20)

While in the bedroom, Hamilton heard a gunshot which was followed a few seconds later by a second. (V-TR 20, 55) He was scared. (V-TR 20) Because of the children, he hesitated a minute before leaving the bedroom. (V-TR 20-23, 55-56) When he walked out, he saw Michael on the living room floor with blood on him. (V-TR 21) Madeleine was standing near the kitchen with the 16 gauge shotgun in her hands. (V-TR 22-23) The gun was sometimes kept in the kitchen or storage room because it was used to shoot squirrels from a tree in the backyard. (V-TR 14) Thewell snatched the gun away from her by the barrel. (V-TR 22) Madeleine turned around and Thewell accidentally discharge the gun. (V-TR 22, 31-33, 46-48) He said he did not know the gun was loaded and when he grabbed it, he automatically moved his hand to the trigger area where he must have bumped it. (V-TR 46-48) The shot struck her leqs. (V-TR 51) They both moved toward the living room area where Madeleine fell. (V-TR 49-53) As Thewell knelt to help his wife, the gun discharged again, striking her in the chest. (V-TR 49-54) Only two shots were fired, and Hamilton did not reload the shotgun. (V-TR 42, 46) He tried to help Michael and Madeleine, and then, after several attempts to obtain an opening on his party line, he telephoned the sheriff's office. (V-TR 35-36, 39-40) Hamilton said he never had the chance to call the ambulance service. (V-TR 39 - 40)

Hamilton explained his October 16th request of Investigator Adams to search for a perpetrator. (V-TR 24-25, 62-69) At that time, Hamilton said he just could not accept the fact that

Madeleine had shot her son. (V-TR 24-25) He was in shock because of the shootings and believed that a another person must have been involved. (V-TR 24-25) He also said he has trouble remembering things due to an injury he received during a mortar attack in Viet Nam. (V-TR 26-27) He spent over a month in the hospital in Japan. (V-TR 27) Hamilton retired from the Army with 20 years of service. (V-TR 7)

Penalty Phase and Sentencing

The State presented no additional evidence at penalty phase. (TR 573) Hamilton presented testimony from his brother, sister and ex-wife. (TR 574-589) Dean Hamilton, Thewell's younger brother, testified about their relationship and Thewell's nonviolent personality. (TR 574-579) He said that Thewell was born in Silacogga, Alabama, and was 51 years old. (TR 576) Thewell retired from the Army after 20 years of service and he was injured while in Viet Nam. (TR 577) Dean said he and his brother were quite close for several years after Thewell's military service. (TR 577) Thewell worked for the Michelin Tire Corporation in Dothan, Alabama. (TR 578) Dean said Thewell was always a kind, gentle person. (TR 579) He said that they had maintained close contact since Thewell left the military. (TR 577) Dean said Thewell did not abuse alcohol. (TR 569) Cheryl Hamilton, Thewell's younger sister, testified that Thewell did not drink to excess and she had never known him to be violent or abusive. (TR 587-589) Finally, Hedrick Hamilton, Thewell's ex-wife, testified about their

relationship. (TR 580-585) She said they met in Germany and were married a for fifteen years. (TR 581-583) After their divorce, they maintained a friendship. (TR 581-582) She said he was never violent or abusive of her or anyone else. (TR 583-586)

Prior to sentencing, the court ordered a presentence investigation. (R 163-179) (TR 608) Defense counsel objected to the PSI, since it contained inaccurate facts, conclusions and opinions from law enforcement personnel, relatives of the victims and others. (TR 610) The trial court imposed a death sentence for each murder. (R 180-184) (TR 617-618)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. Hamilton was forced to trial with a biased juror when the trial judge denied his challenge for cause. Because of exposure to pretrial publicity, Juror Pamela Smith had formed an opinion regarding guilt. She said it would take some evidence to the contrary to change her opinion. Counsel exhausted his peremptory challenges and asked for more. The court denied the request, and Pamela Smith served on jury. Denial of the cause challenge forced Hamilton to trial with this biased juror in violation of his rights under the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution.

2. Admitting the hearsay testimony, the trial judge deprived Hamilton of his right to confrontation as guaranteed by the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution. The court allowed an HRS social worker to testify to statements Hamilton's 2 1/2-year-old son made indicating that Hamilton shot his wife and stepson. His son did not testify. Defense counsel objected on hearsay grounds. However, the court admitted the testimony under the excited utterance exception to the hearsay rule. This ruling was incorrect because the State failed to establish a sufficient predicate that the child was under the stress or excitement of the event at the time of the statements or that the statements were trustworthy.

3. Hamilton objected to the prosecutor's use of peremptory challenges to excuse black prospective jurors. The court ruled that Hamilton had no standing to object under <u>State v. Neil</u>,

because he is white. Both the United States and Florida Constitutions gives white defendants standing to object to discrimination in jury selection. Every defendant is entitled to a jury fairly selected from cross section of the community. Additionally, as a policy matter, every defendant has the right to object to racial discrimination in the selection of juries in order to preserve the integrity of the judicial process.

4. The trial court improperly found two aggravating circumstances -- that the homicides were cold, calculated and premeditated and committed in an especially heinous, atrocious or cruel manner. The murders were shootings deaths during an intra-family argument. There was no evidence of a prearranged design to kill. Furthermore, the deaths occurred within minutes of the first shots fired, and nothing indicated that the manner of death was designed to inflict unnecessary pain.

5. The death sentences imposed in this case are disproportional. Initially, the aggravating circumstances simply do not support a death sentence. Only one of the three aggravating circumstances used in sentencing for the death of Michael Luposello was valid. Neither of the two aggravating circumstances used in sentencing for the murder of Madeleine Hamilton was valid. Both statutory and nonstatutory mitigating circumstances are present. Furthermore, the homicides resulted from a heated domestic argument which is the type of crime for which a death sentence is inappropriate.

6. Judge Costello ordered a presentence investigation report prior to sentencing. It contained improper and

irrelevant comments and opinions from law enforcement personnel, the preparer of the PSI and Madeleine Hamilton's parents. These comments were irrelevant, nonstatutory aggravating circumstances which should not have been considered in sentencing. The judge considered the PSI and made reference to it in her sentencing order. Use of this irrelevant material tainted the sentencing process in violation of the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments.

7. The trial judge used an improper legal standard to consider the jury's death recommendation in sentencing. In her sentencing order, the trial judge began her analysis with the proposition that the the jury's recommendation of death could not be overstressed. While the jury's recommendation is to be given considerable weight, it can be overstressed. Hamilton's death sentence is now based on the court's use of an erroneous standard and must be reversed.

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