IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA



FEB 10 ICAN

CLERK, SUFFACE COURT

THEWELL E. HAMILTON,

Appellant,

v.

CASE NO. 72,502

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

GARY L. PRINTY #363014 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (904) 488-0600 /573

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Thewell Hamilton was the defendant below and will be referred to herein as Hamilton or Appellant. The State of Florida was the prosecution below and will be referred herein as the State or Appellee. The Appellee will rely on the designation set forth in the preliminary statement of the initial brief.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Ι

Hamilton was not forced to trial with a biased juror when the trial judge denied his challenge for cause. Counsel for Hamilton had not exhausted his peremptory challenges at the time he learned of Pamela Smith's opinions regarding guilt. The proper procedure would have been for Hamilton to peremptory challenge Pamela Smith and then request additional peremptories. Pamela Smith sat on this jury because counsel for Hamilton did not strike her. In any event, the trial court judge determined that Smith could put aside any opinion she has and base her verdict solely on the evidence and the law. That is what is required of any juror.

II

The trial court did not err in admitting the per se testimony of Hamilton's $2\frac{1}{2}$ year old son indicating that Hamilton shot his wife and stepson. The record evidence establishes that the statement was made without prompting by the HRS worker and less than two hours after the shock of seeing the gruesome murder occur.

III

Hamilton objected to the prosecutor's use of peremptory challenges to excuse the one black prospective juror. One black prospective juror is not a pattern of discrimination. However, the opposite is true. Hamilton exercised all of his peremptory challenges against members of the white race and offered no explanation for any of them. Even white jurors are entitled to sit on jury duty.

There was no evidence that the shooting deaths occurred during an intra-family argument. There was evidence that Hamilton had to reload his gun at least three times to shoot the victims with the fatal shots. This court has already recognized the time for deliberation required to reload a gun is sufficient to establish premeditated killing. This is especially so where the fatal shots were fired at close range to the heart of one victim and to the head of the second victim. Cold, calculated and premeditated aggravating and especially heinous, atrocious and cruel aggravating factors were properly found.

V

The death sentences imposed in this case are proportionate to this murder. There are three valid aggravating circumstances for the murder of Michael Luposello and two valid aggravating circumstances for the murder of Madeleine Hamilton. The jury was properly instructed on statutory and non-statutory mitigating circumstances and the trial court properly considered such evidence. The jury and court agreed that the statutory aggravation outweighed all mitigation. There was no evidence of a domestic disturbance.

VI

The only evidence that the trial court relied on from the PSI was that Hamilton denied shooting his wife. This statement was presented at trial through the testimony of law enforcement officers on the scene who stated Hamilton told them that the victim's ex-husband had killed her. The court's sentencing order

noted that Hamilton testified at trial and admitted to the shooting. Hamilton testified during the guilt phase and his testimony was obviously not believed by the jury.

VTT

The trial court did not err in giving great weight to the jury's recommendation of death. The sentencing order reflects that the trial court found valid aggravating circumstances and weighed them against valid mitigating circumstances and concurred with the jury that aggravation outweighed mitigation in favor of a sentence of death.

VIII

The trial court properly instructed the jury that the sentencing decision was solely the judge's responsibility. The standard jury instructions regarding the jury's role in sentencing were given without objection. Hamilton cannot complain about the jury instructions as he did not object and request and supply a written instruction stressing the role of the jury.

1

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
DENYING A DEFENSE CHALLENGE FOR CAUSE
TO A PROSPECTIVE JUROR WHO HAD FORMED
AN OPINION TO GUILT ON THE BASIS OF MEDIA
COVERAGE OF THE CASE PRIOR TO TRIAL

Thewell Hamilton was not forced to trial with a juror who had already formed an opinion on the issue of guilt. At the time Pamela Smith stated on voir dire that she had formed an opinion regarding guilt due to the media coverage, counsel for Hamilton full compliment of peremptory challenges available. Defense counsel challenged for cause but the trial judge denied (TR 56). Counsel did not exhaust his peremptory the challenge. challenges and ask for new ones until much later and without having challenged Pamela Smith. The only reason Pamela Smith served as a juror at trial was Hamilton's failure to peremptorily challenge her when the court denied the challenge for cause. Moore v. State, 525 So.2d 870 (Fla. 1988), this Court awarded a new trial because the trial court's failure to excuse the juror for cause reduced the number of peremptory challenges available to the defendant. In Hill v. State, 477 So.2d 553 (Fla. 1985), the Appellant expended a peremptory challenge on the biased juror Johnson after the trial court denied a challenge for cause. Hill, at 555. This juror should have been peremptorily challenged with a request for additional peremptory challenges. This procedure was not followed.

The jurors' statements during voir dire indicate that this was her first appearance as a juror and she did not fully

understand the process. However, the court asked the following question:

Q: Mrs. Smith, do you feel that, if I tell you that you have, what you have to do here is listen to only what you hear in this courtroom, what you hear from the witness stand, the arguments that the lawyers tell you and the law that I give you, do you feel that you could base your decision on that?

A: Yes, ma'am.

Q: Is there any doubt in your mind that you would be able to do that?

A: No, ma'am, there wouldn't be any doubt. (TR 55).

Any confusion between the answers given by juror Smith to the trial court and the answers to the questions posed by defense counsel were best resolved by the trial court. As recognized by the United States Supreme Court in Patton v. Yount, 467 U.S. 1025 (1984):

The testimony of each of three challenged jurors is ambiguous and at times contradictory. This is not unusual on voir dire examination, particularly in a highly publicized criminal case. It is well to remember that the lay persons on the panel never have been subjected to the type of leading questions and cross-examination tactics that frequently are employed, and that were evident in this case. Prospective jurors represent a crosssection of the community, and their education and experience vary widely. Also, unlike witnesses, prospective jurors had no briefing by lawyers prior to taking Jurors thus cannot be expected the stand.

invariably to express themselves carefully and even consistently. Every trial judge understands, and under our system it is that judge who is best situated to determine competency to serve impartially. The trial judge properly may choose to believe those statements that were the most fully articulated or that appeared to have been least influenced by leading.

Id., at 1039.

The trial court did not err in denying the challenge for cause to juror Pamela Smith and Hamilton could have peremptorily challenged Smith in a timely manner and requested additional challenges but this was not done.

II

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN ALLOWING AN HRS SOCIAL WORKER TO TESTIFY, UNDER THE EXCITED UTTERANCE OF THE HEARSAY RULE, TO STATEMENTS ALLEGEDLY MADE BY HAMILTON'S $2\frac{1}{2}$ YEAR OLD SON THAT HAMILTON SHOT THE VICTIMS

Appellee agrees that **State v. Jano**, 524 So.2d 660 (Fla. 1988), sets forth the correct standard for the admission of excited utterance testimony as an exception to the hearsay rule:

The essential elements necessary to fall within the excited utterance exception are that: (1) there must be an event startling enough to cause nervous excitement; (2) the statement must have been before there was time to contrive or misrepresent; (3) the statement must be made while the person is under the stress of excitement caused by the event.

Jano, supra, at 661.

reliability of such evidence is premised on the declarant's making the statements before having time to reflect. Jackson v. State, 419 So.2d 394, 396 (Fla. 4th DCA 1982). length of time between the startling event and the statement is an important factor which must be weighed against the age of the It is rather obvious that a $2\frac{1}{2}$ year old is going to declarant. а different mental agility regarding the ability to fabricate statements and develop alterior motives. Here, there is no motive for a $2\frac{1}{2}$ year old boy who had witnessed such a terrible crime to fabricate evidence that his father did the killing. In fact, it would be the opposite motive to protect the only living parent.

The trial court made the following finding in admitting evidence:

COURT:

All right, well, an hour and a half. question was, was the statement under stress of the excitement. I think I find under these circumstances that the child was with his father, Officer Tate was there and he couldn't talk to him alone, he was still under that excitement. There were strange people coming and going in the bedroom, there were at least Mr. Tate, the child saw from the testimony, Mr. Godwin, Deputy Tate, and the other Deputy Tate and Investigator Adams, Mr. Godwin, Mrs. Leitner, so those are at least four or five people the child had not seen before. The statement of Mr. Godwin that the child seemed to not to have much emotion, it could be a factor showing the stress he was under. I will find that there has been a sufficient of predicate under the excited utterance exception to the hearsay rule to allow the admission of the testimony. Anything else you wish to put into the record?

DEFENSE: No, Your Honor. (TR 553).

The trial court ruling was that the utterance was made within and hour and a half of the event and that the comings and goings of the investigators precluded the child from making a statement at that time. Once the child was alone with Mr. Godwin he made the statement and repeated it numerous times. this Court stated there may be some circumstances where the age of the declarant might justify the admission of such a statement where the record establishes the time period between the events and the statement and there is evidence the statements were made while the child was under the stress of the event. The trial court here held that an hour and a half was sufficiently close to the event and the fact that this was the first opportunity for the child to make such a statement. The statement was not prompted by interrogation as is often the case in sexual abuse situations where there is an interview conducted by a counselor long after the stressful event.

The State would also argue that the admission of this testimony was harmless error given the overwhelming evidence of guilt and the likelihood that a jury would convict a defendant of first degree murder based on the testimony of a $2\frac{1}{2}$ year old. In Cox v. State, 473 So.2d 778 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1985), the court held statements of the defendant's wife to a hospital clerk were inadmissible hearsay but found the error harmless given the overwhelming evidence of appellant's guilt. Here, given the amount of evidence put on by the State and the defendant's own admission during the guilt phase that he shot his wife albeit accidentally, the admission of the hearsay statement was harmless

even under this Court's standards set forth in **State v. DiGuilio**, 491 So.2d 1129 (Fla. 1986).

III

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
RULING THAT HAMILTON, WHO WAS WHITE,
LACKED STANDING TO OBJECT TO THE
STATE'S USE OF A PEREMPTORY
CHALLENGE AGAINST A BLACK JUROR

Hamilton states the question is whether a white defendant has standing to object to the State's discriminatory use of peremptory challenges to exclude blacks from jury service. is not the factual scenario presented here. There was only one black juror in the entire venire and the State struck that juror. The striking of one black juror can not create a pattern of discrimination which is the prerequisite to a claim under State v. Neil, 457 So.2d 481 (Fla. 1984). Regardless of whether Hamilton has standing to object, he has failed to meet the Neil and establish that the State threshold test of discriminated in the exercise of peremptory challenges. obvious that under the test of Neil or Batson v. Kentucky, 476 U.S. 79 (1986), the striking of one black juror would not be enough to establish discriminatory use of peremptory challenges even if Hamilton were black. Otherwise, the State would be required to change venue to a community where there were more black jurors before a black defendant could get a fair trial. Hamilton has not alleged that the State discriminatorily selected a venire to preclude a black jurors from sitting which is his burden to establish any discrimination in this case.

IV

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
FINDING AND CONSIDERING THE
AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES IN THIS CASE

(A)

The trial court properly found that the murders were especially heinous, atrocious or cruel.

Hamilton sets forth the trial court's findings regarding heinous, atrocious or cruel. Hamilton argues that the homicides were nearly instantaneous shooting deaths. This statement is belied by overwhelming factual evidence to the contrary. evidence presented by the medical examiner and the firearms expert was that Madeleine Hamilton attempted to struggle after her legs had been blown away and attempted to crawl across the floor on her knees because she could not walk before Hamilton fired a third shot directly into her heart. The evidence of Michael Luposello's murder was that he was initially shot in the chest with insufficient force to kill him and then a second shot was placed into the side of his head to finish the job. killing was therefore heinous, atrocious or cruel as to each victim without knowledge or consideration of the other murder. The evidence reflects that Madeleine Hamilton was shot in the back of the legs before being executed with a shot to the heart. Everything about the manner of this killing suggests that it was done to unbelievable cause unnecessary and excruciating suffering.

In Swafford v. State, 533 So.2d 270, 277 (Fla. 1988), this Court approved findings of heinous, atrocious and cruel based on prior decisions of this Court in Troedel v. State, 462 So.2d 392 (Fla. 1984) (trial court found bullet wounds in victim's legs indicated victim was deliberately tormented before the summary The nature of the wounds inflicted on both victims combined with knowledge of what happened to the other victim is beyond gainsay evidence of a shockingly pitiless crime. In Brown v. State, 526 So.2d 903 (Fla. 1988), this Court held that a murder was not especially heinous, atrocious or cruel where that finding was premised largely on the victim's status as a law This is the only explanation for this enforcement officer. Court's rejection of the heinous, atrocious or cruel aggravating factor in that case. This Court was wrong in Brown to conclude that it was not heinous, atrocious or cruel but, in any event, Brown was a life recommendation from the jury. In order to shoot Madeleine Hamilton in the back of each leg with a separate shot, Appellant had to reload his shotgun. None of the cases cited by Hamilton involved this scenario.

The trial court did not err in finding that the homicides were committed in a cold, calculated and premeditated manner.

In Swafford, supra, this Court reaffirmed its earlier decision in Phillips v. State, 426 So.2d 194 (Fla. 1985) regarding the cold, calculated and premeditated aggravating factor where the record conclusively demonstrates that the defendant reloaded his weapon in order to fire the deadly blow after an initial shooting which only wounded the victim. Hamilton used a two shot weapon at close range from the back on an apparently unsuspecting victim, Madeleine Hamilton, and then had to reload before shooting her in the chest.

Hamilton then shot his step-son in the chest in a manner which did not cause death and then had to reload in order to fire a second shot to the boy's head. There is no scenario which can explain these killings which is not cold, calculated and premeditated. At some point Hamilton shot his wife from the back and then finished her off.

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